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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION
ATOMIC SAFETY AND LICENSING BOARD

In the Matter of: :
PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC ¢t Docket Nos, 50-275-0OLA-2
COMPANY H 50-232-0LA~2
(Diablo Canyon Nuclear !
Power Plant, Units 1 and 2) : ASLBP No. 92~669~03~0LA~2
(Construction Period Facility :
Operating Licenscvs Recapture) :

No. DPR-80 and DPR-B2 H

San Luis Obispo City Hall
990 Palm Street
San Tuis Obispo, California
Thursday, December 10, 1992
The above-entitled matter came on for pre-hearing
conference, pursuaht to notice, at 9:36 o'clock a.m.
BEFORE: THE HONORABLE CHARLES BECHHOEFER, CHAIRMAN
THE HONORABLE DR. JERRY KLINE, MEMBER
THE HONORABLE FREDERICK J. SHON, MEMBER
Atomic Safety and Licensing Board
U.S8. Nuclear Regulatory Commission

Washington, D.C. 20555
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PEACE:

ON BEHALF OF THE SAN LUIS OBISPO MOTHERS FOR

JILL ZAMEK

JUNE VON RUDEN
ROCHELLE BECKER
NANCY CULVER
SANDY SILVER
P.O, Box 164
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PROCEEDINGS
(9136 a.m., )

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Good morning, ladies and
gentlemen, This is a pre~hearing conference, the first
pre-hearing conference in the proceeding involving the
application by Pacific Gas and Electric Company to .ecapture
or recover a certain period of time in their operatiig
license, the effect of which would be to extend the puriod
of operation of the Diablo Canyon Nuclear Power Plant's
Units 1 and 2.

The Atomic Safety and Licensing Board will hear
this proceeding, I will introduce the members. On my left
is Fred Shon, Frederick Shon, who's a nuclear engineer and
physicist, On my right is Dr. Jerry Kline, an environmental
scientist. My name is Charles Bechhoefer. I'm the chairman
of the Board and I'm an attorney.

rarticipating today are, one, petitioner for an
intervention in this proceeding, the Mothers for Peace, and
two other parties, the Pacific Gas and Electric Company, who
ie the applicant or the licensee as the case may be and the
NRC Staff. 1 would like the representatives of the parties
toe introduce themselves. 1 cuess I'll start on my left with
the staff, Miss Hodgdon.

MS. HODGDON: 1I'm Ann P, Hodgdon, representing the

NRC Staff, and with me today is Arlene Jorgensen, who also
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represents the staff. And I have two technical staff
members with me, She.ri Peterson, who's over here, who's the
project manager for this project, and Meena Khanna, who is
an intarn who's with us from headguarters at F. jion 3.

MS. ZAMEK: This is working?

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Care to introduce yourselves?

It's supposed tov be working.

MS. ZAMEK: 1I'm Jill Zamek with the Mothers for
Peace, and we are representing ourselves today.

M5, VAN RUDEN: 1I'm Juaie van Ruden, a member of
Mothers for Peace,

MS8. CULVER: Nancy Culver, Mothers for Peace.

MS. BECKER: Rochelle Becker, Mothers for Peace.

MR. REPKA: 1 am David Repka, Counsel for Pacific
Gas and Electric Company. And on my left is Richard Locke,
also counsel for the company. Four the Board's information,
I'd like to introduce or recognize that with me today, among
others, are Greg Rueger, who's the company senior
vice-president and general manager for nuclear power
generation, and Warren Fujimoto, who's vice-president for
Nuclear Technical Services.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Well, the purpose of this
conference today is for us to entertain arguments on whether
the Mothers for Peace may become a party to this proceeding.

This proceeding is a little different from most traditional
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type of NRC proceedings. The company is seeking to

recapture certain periods of time which were occupied by
construction,

Initially ~~ at the time PGLE received its
operating license -- or applied for its operating licenses,
the Commission was -- the Commission is =~ which is limited
to 40 ««~ to granting licenses for a period of 40 years, was
granting those licenses from the period of the construction,
and the period of actual construction was included in that
period of time, so that the 40 years did not include 40
years of actual operation.

Starting about in the early '80s, 1981 or '2, 1
guess, the Commission changed its policy and began granting
operating licenses for the full 40 years from the time of
initial operating authority. Pacific Gas and Electric
Company is seeking to recapture that period of time, The
proceeding must be differentiuted between -- or from
renewal-type proceedings where {f there is a 40-year
license, it may be renewed for another period of time, an
additional pericd of time, and different procedures govern
that type of proceeding.

But 1 might alsc add there's very little precedent
on what standards govern a proceeding of this type. Staff
has granted many of these applications from other reactors.

Insofar as I'm aware, in only one case was there a challenge

ANN RILEY & ASSOCIATES, Ltd.
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from a petitioner or intervenor. The other cases the staff
granted. But one cannot say that that should have any
precedent because the very fact that no one sought to
intervene in those cases, so that it's a little bit
different when someone has a right to a hearing or a right
to an opportunity for a hearing as is the case here. This
is published in the Federal Register,

There was a notice of opportunity for hearing.
That's the notice which the Mothers for Peace responded to.
When that happens, the fact that the staff has granted many
other similar applicutions is not particularly relevant,
because they were unopposed in effect. The one case where
there was an opposition, a hearing was held, but it was
eventually settled. The parties agreed to certain terms and
the proceeding was dismissed on that basis.

1 mignt say the Board certainly has nothing
against parties trying to settle their differences and work
out an arrangement such as happened in the othe: case which
was from Vermont Yankee, but that being aside, if the
parties decide they can settle any of the issues through
gome means or other, we'd certainly welcome any such
arrangement and would certainly consider that.

But in the interim, we have a reguest for a
hearir.g petition to intervene, and we must decide which -~

at least ~- thrre has to be at least one contention which is
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admissible, and the Mothers for Peace have filed 11

different contentions, many with multiple subparts, and we

plan to discuss all of those.

In addition, a petitioner must establish that it
has standing to participate. The Mothers for Peace has
submitted the names of five individuals who live within 50
miles of the plant., Many of them live as close as five.
Some of them live as close as five miles, I believe, from
the plant, 1In terms of standing, if it were a routine
operating license or construction permit proceeding, anyone
living within 50 miles and who asserts they may be affected
by the operation of the plant, construction or operation of
the plant, would have standing to participate. the
Commission has cut that down a little bit on operating
license proceedings and has said that those standards apply
only for significant amendments. And, of courese, there's
the question, then, about what is significant.

We be)ieve, by the way, that we should ~- the
first thing we should congider is standing, and 1 know that
the Mothers for Peace in their proposed agenda did not
mention standing at all. The applicants thought we should
consider the contentions first, and then if any of the
contentions were good, only then should we get into
standing. We don't plan to rule on the majority of the

contentions here at the conference. There may be some time
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~= geveral of them are fairly complicated, and I doubt that
we'll have a final answer on those, so0 I think we would like
to start out with the standing question. And the Mothers
for Peace has set forth their case, and the NRC Staff is not
opposed to that. They didn't say they supported it, but
they didn't oppose it, either. I think we should hear both
from Mothers for Peace and from the applicant. The
applicants do oppose the basis set forth for standing, and I
think we should cover that ({irst, because if there's no
substantial standing, there won't be any proceeding at all,
and that one we might be able to rule on while we're here.
But I don't think we could rule on all the contentions.

Some of them we may be able to rule on, but all of them I
don't think wa will,

I might -~ before we actually get into standing,
both parties who have filed proposed agenda have asked for
the opportunity to make opening statements, and I think that
is appropriate for, well, all three, if the staff desires tc
make one as well. 1T think a fairly brief opening statement
will be appropriate. And why don't we lead off with the
Mothers. You choose your representative.

MS. CULVER: Do you want to lead off with them?

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Whichever. It doesn't matter.

MR. REPKA: Mr. Bechhoefer, it's our contention at

this point in the proceeding the petitioner has the burden
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and we would defer to them at this point.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: I think you probably should
lead off.

MS. CULVER: The history of Diablo Canyon forms
a pattern of responding to problems with denial,
rationalization, and cover-up. PGLE can't respond to
problems with solutions because in so many cases there are
no solutions except to close the plant down. It is for this
reason that we should all be in this room today discussing
decommissioning Diablo Canyon rather than extending its
license for up to 15 more years.

To you this case is business as usual. Whether we
have a hearing or not, and whether it includes such issues
as earthquake safety, plant aging, and nuclear waste storage
is only a matter of abstract law and regulations. To us
these decisions, and the whole sorry history of Diablo
Canyon, is very concrete and personal. When most of you
return to your homes many miles from here, we will be left
to live with the reality of Diablo Canyon.

The reality is that Diablo Canyon was mistakenly
sited next to a major active earthquake fault. The plant
was designed and largely built on completely outdated
seismic data, and those data become more obsolete each day
since seismology is a rapidly growing science that is

providing new insights almost on a daily basis. PG&E first
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tried to rationalize away the discovery of an active fault,
and then when it belatedly tried to upgrade the plant, it
did such a bad job of it that it became the only nuclear
plant in America to receive and then lose its operating
license all within a month.

The reality is there is no place and no safe
method for storing high-level radicactive wastes for the
tens of thousands of years it will remain deadly. That
means that Diablo Canyon for all practical purposes has
already become a permanent, high-level radiocactive waste
dump. Now PG4E wanis to produce an additional 15 years of
nuclear wastes for which there is absolutely no storage
plans. Will PG&E next ask to be allowed to place monitored
retrievable storage cusks, another temporary waste storage
solution that is becoming permanent, at this dangerous site?

The reality is that Diablo Canyon is already an
old plant. Many similar nuclear plants are wearing out
after 20 to 25 years. Diablo Canyon was designed in the
1960's and many of its components and materials have been
on-site since the late 1960's, exposed to the corrosion of
air and seawater for many years before the plant operated.
By the time this proposed extension ends, many of these
components and materials will be close to 60 years old.

The reality is that their exists at Diablo Canyon

a persistent pattern of personnel errors and mechanical
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failures. We cite many of these problems in our
contentions, but PGLE complains that we only mention recent
problems. That was partly a factor of time. So let me
remind vou of a less recent accident at the plant. During a
refueling of Unit 2 in April 1987, the vesidual heat removal
system in the containment was lost for one and a ~alf hours.
The top of the reactor vessel was off for maintenance work,
leaving it open to the air, and the water level was about
one half. The water boiled and a series of operator errors
combined to create near-disaster conditions. Among the
errors was that plant operators had no way of knowing the
temperature inside the containment because maintenance was
going on and equipment had been disconnected. To compound
the danger, an engineer drained much-needed cooling water
without telling the control room operators. This was an
immediate threat to the lives of everyone who lives in this
area, and yet no emergency evacuation was put into effect
and the full extent of that day's problems was only
disclosed several months latar by a newspaper that's out of
our county.

This license a2xtension reqguest may be a simple
administrative matter toc you and to PG&E, but to us it's a
matter of the personal safety of our families, our friends,
our neighbors,

The pattern continues. Once again PG&E is asking

ANN RILEY & ASSOCIATES, Ltd.
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13
you to go along with its denials, rationalizations and
cover-ups. PCLE seeks to deny any discussion of earthquake
safety, saying, "We already dealt with that issue for the
original licensing hearing." Doesn't it matter that new
evidence strongly suggests that PG&E is wrongly assuming
that the Hosgri fault will produce almost exclusively
horizontal movement? 1t is in fact likely to produce much
thrusting of plates, creating far more vioclent ground motion
than the plant was designed to withstand. How can it be too
late to raise this issue?

PGLE denies that there is any problem in storing
radiocactive wastes when it knows full well that there will
not be a permanent waste dump in the foreseeable future.

Its spent fuel pools, designed for short-term waste storage,
will be full == reracked and full before this license
extension could take effect. What then?

PGLE wants to avoid dealing with the problems of
aging structures, systems, and components by getting a
license extension now, 16 years before it's needed, and
before the most serious of these problems becomes obvious.
They say we're raising the issue too soon, that it can only
be raised when PGLE applies for a license renewal. However,
PGLE is asking for an extension that is three quarters as
long as the projected 20-year renewal, but which will allow

it to avoid complying with the far more rigorous standards
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required for renewal. No other utility has requested such a
long recapture extension. Further, when the inevitable
problems of aging do become obvious, PGLE will say they
already have their license extension in hand and we raised
the issue too late.

We're asking you to not reward PGLE for its 15
years of mistakes, to not compound the problem of the
plant's dangerous site by extending its life, and to accept
your responsibility as the guardian of public safety, not of
PG4E's corporate profit,

Thank you,

MR. REPKA: Thank you, Judge Bechhoefer.

When Diabloe Canyon was first licensed by the NRC,

the petitioners were here, The petitioners raised many
safety concerns, many of the same contentions that they're
raising here today, many of the same contentions that
they've raised in their papers in this proceeding. At the
time the NRC, PG&E, the advisory committee on reactor
safety, and many of them looked very at the designs of this
plant and concluded that it was an adequately designed plant
and a safe plant. Now that it has been operating for a
number of years, Diablo Canyon has proven to be a very
well-run plant, a very reliable plant, a safe plant.

We're here today and in this proceeding to discuss

one license amendment; not to relitigate and address old
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issues, issues long ago put to rest. The one amendment
before us is truly an administrative change to the license.
It's a change that simply conforms the license to the
original intent of the designers and the NRC in issuing
licenses., The fact is a 40~year operating period was what
was presumed at that time.

We're also here to talk about 11 proposed
contentions. Not new issues that are raised today. Not the
old issues from yesteryear.

In those 11 issues, the petitioners paint a
picture completely at odds with the verifiable public
records, at odds with the record that has been compiled at
this plant in the last several years. The petitioners paint
a picture of shoddy and insufficient maintenance. There is
no support for these contentions. The petitioners simply
offer a few isolated, out-of-context findings, selectively
clipped observations from NRC inspection reports, things
that simply do not add up to programmatic problems that
might be admissible in an NRC proceeding.

In fact, Diablo Canyon has been recognized by the
NRC to be one of the truly best-operated and best-operating
plants in the country.

The petitioners also paint a picture in their
papers of an unmotivated and unskilled work force at Diablo

Canyon, but guite simply an unmotivated and unskilled work
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16
force could not have run a plant as well as this plant has
been run. The objective performance indicators which 1'11
discuss a little bit later this morning clearly support that
this plant has _een well run and that the people who run it
are dedicated, talented professiovnals, deeply committed to
their jobs, to ensuring safety, and to ensuring the
reliabjility of this plant.

The petitioners also raised numerous other safety
issues such as waste, an issue that's clearly outside the
scope of this proceeding based on the NRC's own regulations.
They raise issues such as thermal lag, which are not safety
significant for Diablo Canyon, which have no basis in fact,
and which clearly have no nexus to the amendment at issue,
such as seismic issues which were long ago resolved.
the Commission recently revised its admissibility
thresholds for contentions in its proceedings. Those
thresholds require a greater evidentiary basis than the
Commission previously required for the admission of
contentions, a showing that there is a genuine issue, a new
safety concern, a concern that has not been previously
litigated, one that could entitle the petitioner to relief.
If those new evidentiary standards, those new threshold
standards are to have any meaning at all, none of the
contentions in this proceeding can possibly be found to be

admissible.
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Given the picture of neglect and cynicism painted
by the petitioners regarding Diablo Canyon, let me provide
some context as opposed to the isolated, out-of-context
inspection findings that they offered. let's look at some
of the big picture indicators for Diablo Canyon.

In 1992 alone, nrc senior managerent has commended
Diablo Canyon as one of a handful of truly outstanding
performers in the United States. The NRC does not put
plants on its good performers list lightly. This is an
achievement we are very proud of. It is in fact a testament
to the people who run this plant and how well it's been run.

The NRC also has a program called the Systematic
Assessment of Licensee Performance Program. This program
focuses on not minor, little safety insignificant details,
but the big picture: How this is plant operated? How is
management doing? How are the people doing? In the last
two assessment periods covering a period of three years,
Diablo Canyon has been given a Category 1 rating in plant
operations. A Category 1 rating denotes excellence. It
denotes achievement far beyond mere compliance with NRC
regulations.

As a third indicator, Diablo Canyon has achieved
an excellent record of performance and reliability evidenced
by its high capacity factor. It's well recognized by the

industry and by the NRC that a well~run plant is a safe
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plant. A plant that achieves a high capacity factor is a
plant that is avoiding unnecessary risks.

Under the unique Diablo Canyon rate structure,
financial health of this company is tied directly to the
performance, the safety, and the reliability of this plant.
The incentives are for Diablo Canyon to operate safely and
efficiently.

Fourth, Diablo Canyon training programs have been
recognized as a model both nationally and internationally by
the Institute of Nuclear Power Operations. This again shows
our commitment to training and again is completely at odds
with the picture painted by the petitioners. Another
indicator, operators at Diablo Canyon have achieved a nearly
100 percent requalification rate in their requalification
testing. This is a percentage and an achievement that far
exceeds the industry norm.

The plant also has an extensive capital budget and
improvement program. It's safe to say that we are
constantly reviewing this plant and improving the plant and
having a deep commitment and a deep responsibility to do
0. Another indication is the parts warehouse at
Diablo Canyon. This is one of the largest inventories of
replacement parts in the industry. It allows quick,
efficient replacements, a testament to our commitment to

maintenance. This is not a case, as the petitioners might
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the operation of Lthe plant., It does not exempt PSAE from
any applicable reguirements. It does not eliminate NRC
overviev, the inspection and enforcement process. It merely
conforms the license to the original design basis cf the
plant, This is not license renewal which relates to
operation beyond the statutory 40-year term., It's not an
initial liicense, either It's not an opportunity to reraise
the old issues. This morning the petitioners again talked
about new seismic data. 1In fact, in their written
contertions, seismic appears in only twou very limited
contexts., Thermal lag and the design of the spent fuel
pool. Both concerns are totally baseless, but beyond that,
the sei.mic design of Diablo Canyon has been scrutinized
more closely than that for any plant in the country.

The NRC, PG&E recently completed the long-~term
seismic program for Diablo Canyon. All of the new
information that tne petitioners allege has not been taken
into account has in fact been taken into account, including
the Loma Prieta earthquake of 1989. The seismic design for
Diablo Canyon assures safety now and will do so for the full
license term. This is not the occasion to replow old fields
and relitigate issues long ago put to rest.

In conclusion, the Commission's hearing procedures
has recently revised or intended to reserve formal lLearings

for those cases where truly new safety concerns, truly new
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issues are at stake. That's simply not the case here. We
ask that this Board dismiss the proceeding.

Thank you,

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Miss Hodgdon?

MS. HODGDON: The staff does not wish 0 make
an opening statemenc.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: ' guess we'll get into
standing, and if there's any further comments ~- we've read
the briefs on -~ well, on everything, but standing in
particular.

Do the Mothers for Peace wish to make any further
points on standing, Miss Culver or whoever is going to
address that?

MS. ZAMEK: 1 would ..y besides what we've
already said in our original contention in standing, when he
mentioned that about significant -- when there's a
significant action, and I would say that 15 years would be
signi“icant since the normal recapture time is 50, somebody
mentioned %50 or so plants have already received this
recapture, :. . doubt that it was for 15 years. This is
really a unique casw.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Well, do you perceive
additional risk, for instance? The applicant claims they're
not making any changes at all.

MS. 'AMEK: Yes. Absolutely, I perceive. We're
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talking a lot of years into the future. We're talking to
the year 2025. And for them to claim that there's not going
to be any environmental impact for that many years, we're
talking 16 years before the license -- their current license
expires and then they want another 15 on top of that, and it
seems to me that's a little premature.

We don't -- they've only been operating, I think,
eight years, and there's already some signs of aging, and
they've already experienced some problems, and they've
already reracked their waste and they don't know what to do
with the waste and they haven't said what they're going to
do with the waste. I think there's some significant hazards
involved here and that's a lot of time in the future here;
2,025,

MS. BECKER: 1In addi.ion, Your Honor, the issues
tha. they say have already been litigated, on the seismic
issue, when they talk about seismic problems at Diablo
Canyon in the past, they 4id talk about current information
in the long-term seismic program. However, no one has ever
discussed or litigated or made a ruling on the effects of
seismicity earthgquakes on an aging nuclear power plant.

This is & nuclear power plant that was built, designed in
the late '60s and early '70s, and to give them 15 extra
years with aging parts, perhaps a problem with fraudulent

parts, perhaps a problem with thermal lag, all those in an
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area of high seismicity, when daily there has been new
information on earthquakes in California since the
conclusion of the long~term seismic program, and for anyone
to put their head in the sand and say this is an issue
that's already been litigated is absolutely untrue. No one
talked about the eftects of an earthquake on an aging
nuclear power plant, a nuclear power plant built and
designed in the '60s, largely built and designed in the
'60s, redesigned, rebuilt in the '70s and '80s. We need to
have the time to see what aging is going to do when there
are earthquake effects. And to give them an extension of 15
years at this point when we have absolutely no idea what
aging-related problems are going to happen at Diablo Canyon,
what thermal lag, what problems may be with fraudulent
parts, what personnel problems that have happened in the
past may turn up in the future at a nuclear power plant is
very premature. We don't want to relitigate any seismic
issues that have already been litigated, but what we want to
do is we want to be able to litigate, we want to be able to
discuss, we want to have a ruling on what an earthguake
could do to a power plant that has had erosion problems =--
erosion of their components since the late -~ the early =--
late '60s and early '70s. Those parts have been out :here.
They've been tested. They've had salt water running

through them. They've been sitting in salt air for quite
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some time. To give thew 15 more years and say they're going
to be just fine in a 7.5 earthguake is something that has
certainly not been litigated in the past.

MR. REPKA: There's a lot there, and I'll try to
pass through several of them.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Well, this is basically on the
standing question. But I do have one gquesticn, Mr. Repka,
to ask you. 1Is risk, accident risk, for instance, partially
a product uof time?

MR. REPKA: 1It's partially a product of time,
but ==

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: And isn't that enough of an
incremental risk to warrant standing under the 50-mile --

MR. REPKA: I don't think so,.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: That s my real question. I see
a difference in risk, and I know -~ a show on the standing
doesn't have to be as much as a show on justifying
contention, and I'm just wondering why standing isn't almost
a given when you have affidavits of people that live as
close as five miles.

JUDGE SHON: Mr. Repka, maybe I can clarify
exactly what we're driving at here a little bit. Roughly in
most analyses the chance of a nuclear accident at a given
plant is taken to be a constant with time; that is, constant

with every increment in time. That if you propose to
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accident was going to happen in 2020, for instance, wouldn't
that have been ruled ocutside the jurisdiction of the wards
that previously considered these guestiuns? It would be
beyond the juris- -~ beyond the license period, and the
answer would have been, so what? There's no jurisdiction to
even consider that. So ==

MR. REPKA: I don't think so, because the original
applications would have said a 40-year license, and until
the staff issued a license -~

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: I don't think so. I think the
initial -~ I have not a copy of it, but I'm sure that the
operating license set forth the term of years for which the
license was sought, and 1 think anybody who raised guestions
beyond that term -- turn of years would have been found to
be beyond the jurisdiction of the Board to consider at that
time. So I think those potential accident -- and I'm just
picking 2020 out of the air; it doesn't matter -- would not
have been within the jurisdiction of the ward to consider.

MS. VON RUDEN: Might I make a brief comment
initially?

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Wait until he's through with
his.

MR. REPKA: I mean, I think you have to keep
coming back to the fact of the original design basis, and

this is not -- it does not create anything new, anything
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different.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Well, again, do you think that
an event occurring in this extended period of time or this
recaptured period would have even been judic- ==

MR. REPKA: Well, I think implicitly it was -~ the
design accident analysis was based on 40 years of operation
and that it wasn't tied to any specific calendar dates.

That whole design basis was in play as it were in initial
licensing, so, yes, it was all subject to hearing at that
time. The maintenance program, for example, there's nothing
different about what will happen in the maintenance program
in 13 additional years than in the first so many years.

That maintenance program was the maintenance program and it
was subject to hearing at that point.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Well, were there any =-- we
haven't gotten to the maintenance contention yet, but --

MR. REPKA: I just use that an as example for
the =--

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: But I don't think there were
standards for maintenance programs in those days. The staff
approved it. I don't think -- if somebody can come in and
say that a portion of the maintenance program didn't conform
to any particular standards, there were no standards. 1In
fact, I don't think there are now those standards as such.

There's been a policy statement since then. I think that

ANN RILEY & ASSOCIATES, Ltd.
Court Reporters
1612 K. Street, N.W., Suite 300
Washington, D. C. 20006
(202) 293-3950



10

11

12

e I

14

i9

16

37

18

19

20

21

22

23

25

28
when you don't have a specific rule that you conform to, it
would be very difficult to raise detail questions. Then
when you come back later and say, "“Here's some examples,
look, the program's not working now," it's a matter of
evidence whether it is or isn't working. Those may be
cut-of-context examples, for instance, but that to me sounds
like an evidentiary matter rather than a nonacceptance of a
contention. 1It's a difference of opinion that should be
resolved.

MR. REPKA: There is a fundamental distinction
between the license term and the licensing basis. And the
fact of the matter is the licensing basis, it just was not
tied to any particular calendar year. It was 40 years of
operation. And, you know, I think we're getting hung up on
dates unnecessarily and missing what in fact was analyzed.

I think that's the essence of license renewal and
the issue the Commission is grappling with in the renewal
context. The renewal is fundamentally something that goes
beyond what has previously been analyzed. It goes beyond
the original licensing basis, so at that point there may be
standing and there may be standing to address the limited
scope of issues that the Commission cays can be addressed in
a license renewal.

Let me back up to that point. In licensing the

license renewal rule, the Commission determined that only
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two issues could be litigated in license renewal. One was
age related, degradation, unique to renewal period and any
unigue issues arising from the Environmental Policy Act.

Now, that being the case, to argue that everything
in the additional 13 or 15 years now somehow could give rise
to off~site conferences, could create standing in this
proceeding is completely at odds with what the Commission's
saying there it would seem.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Of course, the Commission had
to pass a whole new set of regulations to say that, and
those are not applicable.

MR. REPKA: They're something completely -~ 1
mean, you cannot have a bigger hearing on a CP recapture
than on a license renewal. That simply doesn't make any
sense.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Well, you can if the Commission
hasn't set standards. The Commission severely limited the
renewal issues and they had to pass a new set of regulations
to do it., And the question is, if they didn't take any
action and they -- as far as 1 can see, there's no standards
for these recaptures other than maybe the one ruling on the
Vermonu Yankee case serves as guidance. It's not precedent,
but it's guidance, at least. Other than that, I haven't
been able to find anything particularly.

MR. REPKA: I agiee there's no precedent on the
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absolutely incorrect to say that because there's no
precedent, because there's no Commission rule, anything
goes. That simply cannot be the case. You have to get back
to the fact that the licensing basis is not tied to any
particular calendar dates. It was 40 years of operation.
And there is no change to that licensing basis.

JUDGE SHON: Mr. Repka, let me approach this in a
little different way. It seems clear to me that with the
change proposed in the license, an additional decade and a
half or so of operation would be possible without that
change, would it not; isn't this true?

MR. REPKA: That's an accurate statement,

JUDGE SHON: 1If, as most people who have
scientifically analyzed it seem to think, the rate, if you
want, of accrual of hazard is constant with time, no matter
how you slice it a..? how ever small, how ever minuscule a
decade and a half of risk may be, it is still an additional
decade and a half of risk. Even -- I know it's ten to the
minus seventh or something per year, but it is per year, and
these numbers are always giving them per year.

MR. REPKA: I don't want to overrate that risk,
because I think it is a very minuscule number. That's
number one. But number two, the licensing basis for :he

plant is a deterministic basis. It's not a probabilistic
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basis. And so it's been deterministically determined to be
adequate based on the design basis accidents, the design
basis effects, and including the design basis earthquake.
And regardless of the likelihood of an earthguake or one of
those accident scenarios in the additional 13 or 15 years,
the fact is deterministically the licensing basis has been
determined to be adequate.

JUDGE KLINE: But isn't the scope of this
proceeding still defined by the amendment at hand; not by
the original licensing basis? And I'm still referring just
to the scope. Not to any merits. And it seems to me =-- I
understand there's no precedent, but the idea of an
additional increnantal risk over time in the context of an
amendment where if the amendment is granted, extra time is
granted, if the amendment is not granted, extra time is
denied no matter how you look at it in terms of initial
licensing. Now, we're not governed here by initial
licensing so much, but by the terms of the amendment. And
in that case, all we're really asking is whether there's a
sufficient similarity between the elements that grants
standing in the first place, i.e., a generalized sense of
risk. No specific injury effect stated at an operating
license stage. And the kind of the very analogous
generalized risk associated with this amenument. Aren't

they sufficiently similar in this case to resolve the
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1 guestion of standing? We're not talking about any merits or
. 2 about whether the contentions are good or not.

3 MR. REPKA: I think it's only superficial

4 similarity. I agree with your first principle, the scope of
5 the proceeding is defined by the amendment, but it's really
6 the definition of that amendment that we're talking about,

7 and if it's an amendment that doesn't change anything about
8 the operation of the plant, it doesn't change anything from
9 what's been previously analyzed, doesn't change the

10 licensing basis, doesn't change the operating procedures, it
11 doesn't change anything and so it, therefore, cannot give

12 rise to -- it can't be the cause of new risk.

13 JUDGE SHON: You've used the word analyzed. What

‘ 14 has been analyzed? We've been focusing on what has been

15 authorized. They're not necessarily the same. 1 believe

16 that what your position is is that the total time-integrated
17 risk that has been analyzed is already greater than what has
18 been authorized, and this is a mere change to in effect

19 egqualize them: is that correct?
20 MR. REPKA: You said it better than I have.

Isn't even that

But how do we know?

JUDGE SHON:

fact the kind of thing that is subject to contention and a

peint of disagreement? Surely the Mothers for Peace don't

believe that all of the risks that would be incurred in the

extended period, in the recapture period have been analyzed.
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They've said so, and they've presented some things that they
say show that. 1Is that not then in itself a matter either
for hearing or, at most, for summary disposition rather than
for dismisgsal at the outset?

MR. REPKA: Well, I think that jumps several steps
beyond. I think we =-- if you assume standing, you still
have to -~ they have some concerns about what may or may not
have been previously analyzed, and we don't agree by any
stretch of tho imagination that they've reached the
thresnolds necessary to support a contention that would be
csubject to summary disposition, much less an evidentiary
hearing. But on the fundamental point, the scope point, 1
just continue to disagree that, you know, what has been
analyzed -- you know, this truly is a change that simply
conferms the license to a change in NRC Staff or NRC legal
interpretation in 1982, and so it's a -~ it's an act of law
more than an act of anything that can create new unanalyzed
risks.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Do you have anything further on
this or should we call on the Staff now?

MR. REPKA: The only additional point I'd like to
make on standing is the Vermont Yankee has come up before,
and I think the Board raised it in one of their orders, and
I want to reiterate I just don't believe that it provides

any precedent at all, because that was the State of Vermont,
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and the State of Vermont has standing, any state woulu have
standing, that an individual organization would not.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Well, whoa. 1'm not so sure.
They came in as an intervenor. Not as an interested state.

MR. REPKA: 1 agree they were not a 2715 state.
But the point 1 was going to make that the NRC Staff raised
an excellent point in their brief here. The hazardous
materials contention, a contentic.. that can't possibly
create any off-site risks is when a state might have
standing but an organization that lives off site, no matter
how close, ¢t 1ld not, so I think that shows an example of
where the state might have standing, but an individual or
organization would not.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Miss Hodgdon, do you have any
comments on standing?

MS. HODGDON: Well, I'd like to make just one
short comment, and that is when the staff said that they did
not dispute standing, the staff was really talking about the
geographical 50 miles seemed reasonable given that this does
have to do with operation.

As far as the scope of ~- the geographical scope
goes -~ and I certainly didn't mean to suggest that the
staff was not interested in the larger question of standing
beyond that, because the staff is, and certainly what Mr.

Repka has said about the way these are regarded is correct.
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I mean, this was analyzed 40~year operation, both from the
point of view of health and safety and from the point of
view of NEPA, of the environmental risk for 40 years, and I
thought we got into something about authorization as opposed
to analysis. 1 think that Judge Bechhoefer also raised the
point of decided and put that in there. It wasn't decided
on 40 years; therefore, wnat does it mean that it was
analyzed for 40 years?

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: 40 years of operation.

MS. HODGDON: For 40 years of operation, That's
correct. And you said well, the licensing Board wasn't
thinking 40 years; it was thinking something else. So 1
think we have a lot of things going on here, and not just
that. But the only point I would wish to add is that as to
the point of prematurity where the petitioner says that this
amendment application is premature, I would also make
another distinction between construction pericd recapture
amendments and license renewal, and that is that in license
renewal, the time for application is fixed in that
regulation, whereas for construction permit recapture, those
amendments can be filed at any time, and there is simply
nothing in the regulations that addresses when those should
be filed.

JUDG¥ BECHHOEFER: That's correct.

MS. HODGDON: That's all I have to say.
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JUDGE BECHHOEFER: I might add that is accurate,
and we recognize that Mothers for Peace position is that
this is a somewhat prematurs. It isn't legally premature.

I might say personally that -- I'm not sure the other Board
members join in this, but I personally think that if the
applicant chooses to apply now, it has every right to do so,
but then it cannot legitimately claim that, well, by the
time you get to the recapture period, everything will be
moot. You're sort of stuck with the facts that you have now
if you apply now. So when we get to particular claims based
on fact, at least I personally don't think a petitioner

should be prejudiced by -- that way. I think the

application may be filed at any time, but when you file it,

you're stuck with the facts as they exist today. At least
in rv own opinion. And as I say, I'm not sure the other
Board members join in this or not.

MR. REPKA: Judge, with your leave, could 1 say
just a few words about whether this is premature or not?

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: No, I'm not saying -- certainly
legally it's clearly not premature. There's nothing in the
“ules that says you can't do it.

MR. REPKA: And my point is, it goes even beyond
tihat. PG&E has a settlement with the rate Commission that
assumes operation for the full 40-year period, so we are

obligated to seek at the earliest possible point regulatory
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assuredness of knowing where we stand with respect to
operation. And, number two, perhaps the more obvious point
is PGLE has the responsibility to plan its generation
capacity and so needs to know what generation capacity will
be available at any given point. We can't put a plant on
line instantaneously if ten years from now we were to apply
fer an extension and it got delayed or something happened.
50 there is a need to know, and that's why we filed the
application when we did.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Right. Now, I'm not disputing
that, but I'm just trying to think that maybe some of the
prematurity points should not be =-- you know, maybe the
defense said something will be moot by the time the
recapture period starts is really not a good defense when,
by the election of the applicant, the applicant has filed
this early. I'm not saying you can't do it. That factor
should not be one to rule out otherwise legitimate
cortentions. I'm not saying the contentions are legiilimate,
but --

MR. REPKA: Well, it sounds like it's taking us a
lot into the issue of what's the scope here, and I think
we'll probably talk about that later.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: That's correct. 1 don't want
to get into that right now.

MR. REPKA: But the only thing I would say is,
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nothing about this application changes the remedies of 10
CFR 2,206 if new information were to come along later.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Yes, but that doesn't give
hearing rights to anybody, doesn't it?

MR. REPKA: It could if it leads to enforcement
action.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: 1It's based on the staff to =--

MR. REPKA: The fact of the matter is, the issued
license is subject to later 2.206 based on new information.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: That's always true, yes.

Anybody want to say anything further on standing?
Okay.

MS. VON RUDEN: Not being an attorney, I don't
know if this is relevant, but that's what this process is
for, so that people that aren't attorneys can be a part of
it.

I attended a meeting on April 2nd of 1992 between
PG4E and the NRC, and around the table the comment that I
heard from sitting in the back of the room was that in no
way is this plant the same plant that it began with, and in
fact I believe that there was a program going on to document
all the changes so in case of an accident, they might easily
research the change, which I thought it was wonderful, and 1
thought -~ I was happy about that. But when I hear the

words that there's nothing different here, it's the same, I
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don't know the laws, but it haunts me that if those two
entities, PG&E and the NRC, can smile and laugh and jokingly
say this is not the same plant at all in any way that it was
when we all began, I can't understand why we can't guestion
at this point the extension of the license, because we are
not dealing in any way with the same plant, including the
fuel -- the storage of the fuel in the beginning, of course,
was not reracked. Was not in the same configuration, and
many of the things have been changed and retrofitted, and
that's it. I don't know if it's relevant or not. That's
what I wanted to say.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Well, I assume, for instance,
just to reracking, that an opportunity for hearing at least
was afforded. I don't know whether there was or wasn't a
hearing, but if the staff does what it always does, the
opportunity would have been afforded.

MR. REPKA: I think the point really is that thre
design basis of the plant has i1.ot changed to that degree.

It is the same plant. With respect to other specific
changes such as the spent fuel pool reracking, those are
subjected to the Commission's requirements for license
amendments and the hearing procedures that attach to those,
s0 we're not here to apply for a new license for a new
plant. That's not what this is all about.

JUDGE SHON: Mr. Repka, in effect, I think what
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you're saying is that although things may have changed about
the plant, many things may have changed and overall
governing principle call the operating license ~- the
operating basis that's a term of art has not changed; is
that right?

MR. REPKA: That's correct.

The authorities that exist under the technical
specifications have not changed.

JUDGE SHON: And the current licensing basis,
whatever that may be, is still the same as it was?

MR. REPKA: Correct.

M&, ZAMEK: Could I say something here? I think
we're still talking on standing.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Yes. Right. We'll wind up
eventually, but we're still on standing.

MS. ZAMEK: The NRC Staff commented in their
response to our contentions that PG4LE failed to cite cases
relevant to its claim that the 50-mile presumption does not
apply, and then further that there is no --

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: That sort of resembles
something I said.

MS. ZAMEK: Yes. I'm repeating it. There is
no clear authority on standing if a CP recapture proceeding
is not in the NRC Staff response, so, yeah, 1 was just

wondering -- I just wanted to repeat that. That's all,
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Make it clear.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: We also don't offer any
objection to your standing, so ==

MS. ZAMEK: That's true.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Absent any -- Miss Hodgdon, do
you have something further to say on standing?

MS. HODGDON: No.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: You're sort of grinning there.

MS. HODGDON: No. Nothing.

JUDGE BECHHCEFER: I think before we get into
other things, contentions, we'll take a short, mid-morning
break. Ten minutes, I guess.

(Recess taken.)

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Okay. Back on the record.
the Board has decided although we are not likely to make
rulings on most of the gquestions that are coming before us
during this conference, we have decided that the Mothers for
Peace do have standing to participate basad on their
showing, and I think it will help the discussion further on
if we sort of -~ if the parties know where we're going.

Now, we will establish -- we will issue a
pre~hearing conference order which spells out the basis for
our conclusion on standing as well as it will spell out our
rulings on every contention as well. But basically on

standing we think that the risk that exists will continue
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for additional years, and if the authorization were not
granted, that risk would be there for the extra 10 or 15
years, 12 or 15 years, whatever. Therefore, there's enough
showing of injury in fact to bring into play the 50-mile
presumption in the, I think, five members affidavits we have
who live considerably closer to 50. As close as five is my
recollection, So the Board has decided that we -- there
will be standing or we will grant -- we will find that there
is standing. But that dcesn't mean -- we have to go through
contention by contention to determine what, if any,
contentions will be adeguate. And we would like to just
start from the beginning, Number I.

I think Mothers for Peace could lead off on
Number I, at least make a general statement. There are a
lot of specifics that we have to cover in that contention,
and we will go through them all, but Mothers may want to
make a general statement about contention Roman I, I think
it's set forth.

MS. ZAMEK: Before we do that, the Mothers for
Peace has prepared a written reply to the PG&E and NRC
responses that I would like the licensing Board to accept
now.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: 1Is it very long? Because you
may want to -~ is this reply dealing with a particular

contention or what?

ANN RILEY & ASSOCIATES, Ltd.
Court Reporters
1612 K. Street, N.W., Suite 300
Washington, D. C. 20006
(202) 293-3950



10

11

12

B

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

43

MS. ZAMEK: 1t ==

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Because on standing, you don't
have to reply.

MS. ZAMEK: I understand.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: You've won that one. You
better quit.

MS. ZAMEK: There's nothing on standing in here.

There was just so many arguments on our
contentions from both parties that we just thought it would
be best to put it in writing, and we combined both of them
together for convenience, and also we didn't get the NRC
Staff response until Friday afternoon, so that's why it's at
this point now that we're providing it. And we also thought
that «-

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Well, normally we would just
discuss contention by contention at a conference such as
this. We have provided for the contentions and then
vesponseés. And replies usually, which this weould be, would
come at the conference.

MS. ZAMEK: Right.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: So I don't know whether this is
something that you should wish to start your presentation by
reading -- just reading or =--

MS. ZAMEK: Yeah. 1It's ==

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: I think it would be preferable
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than to try to pass it around.

MS. ZAMEK: 1 could read it, but its lengthy.
What I did was respond with criticisms with different types
of evidence. 8o I have a lot of different bits of evidence
in here that I thought might be too lengthy to read orally
but that individually people could read them and comment on
them. I could read it if you want.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: No, I don't think we're going
to be ruling on == certainly not on all the contentions.
There may be some we do, but -~ we're not sure about that.
But we would want all the parties to have access to =--
certainly to anything we had. We don't want statements
presented to us that aren't available to the other parties,
80 ==

MS. ZAMEK: I have a service list and everything
attached. 1It's for everybody, and enough copies for
everybody.

MR. REPKA: Judge Bechhoefer, I'm going to object
to this, because we haven't seen this, obviously, before
today, and 1 f=2el like it would be incumbent upon us to
respond, and I think the purpose of this conference is to
discuss the kinds of things we're here -- that are
apparently in this piece of paper which may have a service
list on it, but we haven't seen it. So I would rather just

take up those issues now orally and not submit more paper.
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JUDGE BECHHOEFER: We think it will be a better
procedure for you not to pass around your statement, but to
either read it into the record as a whole or perhaps, more
appropriateiy, as we get to each contention to which it may
apply, divide it into parts and keep the parts that are
applicable to the particular contention.

MS. ZAMEK: Okay. 1It's organized by contention.
It's just that some of it's quite long.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: I see. But as we get to each
contention, you could make a general -- we're going to call
on you to make a general statement for each contentiQn
before we actually get into the details, so if you have,
like, Contention I, if you have some general statements or
if maybe you have some general statements on contentions
generally -~ that's not very good English, but -- if you
have statements about contentions generally, you could do
that at this time, but save the parts that deal with
Contentions II through XI, I guess, until we get to those
contentions.

MS. ZAMEK: Ckay.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: And talk about what's either
general or Contention I and we'll get into each subpart,
too, or each matter cited in support of Contention I,

MS. ZAMEK: Okay. Should I begin on Contention I

OF ==
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JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Yes. But as I say, you will
need to have general statements on contentions. You can do
that, too, but just don't do 11 through XI at this time
until we get to --

MS. ZAMEK: I understand.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Until we get to every one of
them.

MS., ZAMEK: My general statements of Contention I,
point one was that the Public Utilities Commissic
settlement provides PG&E with an economic incentive to delay
repairs., That was part of our contentions, because they get
paid by the amount of electricity they produce, and so
they're always in a big rush at refueling time and when
there's repair times. It's very important to PG&E to get
back on line very quickly, because that's how they get paid,

Number two, PG&E has a longstanding history of
slow response to correct maintenance problems, and that's
documented -- we produced a lot of evidence in our
contentions in our original petition supplement to petition
to intervene, and in this one, our reply, I provided even
more, because the NRC Staff and PG&E both complained about
different things of recent vintage or different things about
there were no violations whatever, so I continued my
research, and there was plenty to show the timeliness

problem, et cetera, et cetera, and I would like to read from
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statement, discussed the problem with the loss of residual
heat removal system capability. PG&E received five
viclations for that event.

I would like to point out that all the evidence
that I show shows problems that repeat themselves again and
again despite corrective actions. And this indicates that
they're going to persist., They've persisted in their short
operating life, and we believe that they will continue to
persist.

Again, PG&E claims, as Mr. Repka did just earlier,
that we've cited isolated operational occurrences and that
no finding of fact cited by Mothers for Peace challenges the
overall effectiveness of the program. I'm guoting him =--
them, from their response.

But we responded the sheer number and
repetitiveness of the problems cited show that there is
programmatic maintenance problems, and I think that the
additional evidence I1've showed clearly shows it.

The Systematic Assessment of License Performance,
the SALP report, that Mr. Repka claims rated them as
Category 1, I find one from January 1, 1990 through
January 30th, 1991. As far as I know, the most current one
is not yet available. 1t's for a year-and-a-half period.
And 1 kept seeing Category 2's, which they identified means

improving, and I have qguote here "Maintenance management
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appears to need to improve the timeliness of dealing with
problems the Board discussed variovus problems that were
allowed to e, 'st until the plant was undesirably aifected or
high level management involvement was required to resolve
the problem." They further state the previous SALP -~ that
was from, you know, 1987 or so == noted that the licensee
was slow to address sone concerns. “The previous SALP
recommendations to licensee management included a need for
stronger management oversight. The maintenance and
survelllance area during this SALP period has been slow to
show sistent improvement. This conclusion is based
largely on examples of a lack of management aggressiveness
in the resolution of problems and examples of a lack of
maintenance management oversight. These problems were the
subject of several licensee audits and surveillances.
Subsequently, the NRC made this area the subject of threo
special inspection reports, including an enfcrcement
conference . "

Trhere was a management meeting held April 2nd,
1992, tc discuss the continuing containment fan cooler unit
backdraft damper fajlures. 1'l]l refer to it as CFCU. This
has been going on for guite a while. It's in the original
contentions and it keeps coming up in the documents. The
discussion centered on, quote, "timely identification and

correctinn of problems." The discussions illustrated that
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PGAE, guote, “"staff is not always resolving indications of
system probhleme in a prompt, thorcugh manner, The
timeliness of your corrective actions for known problems has
been a past issue of concern., We encourage you to ensure
that emerging issues or problems are not confined to
maintenance for resolution but are fully addressed with
engineering and quality oversight organizations' involvement
from the point of identification."

In their discussion -~ that was an end guote.

In their discussion wf the CFCU's, the NRC
guestioned PG&E with indications of broken bolts on
backdraft dampers in March of 1991 were not adequately
followed up. And this is a quote. "Mr. Martin observed
that the March 1991 failure to evaluate the broken bolt
issue illustrated a lack of basic engineering instincts.

Mr. Martin cloced the discussion of this issue by stating
that the attitude should be that 1f any bolts are broken,
there is a problem. He restated the NRC concern that
licensee management needed to communic te the right
expectations for resolving problems to all engineering
groups and to organizations performing the guality assurance
functions," end quote.

The CFCU backdraft dampers continue to be a
problem. JCurrently there was an event 24435, October 15th,

1992, where at this time they have cracks in the vanes in
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Unit 1, and they comment that this condition could impair
the effectiveness of the CFCU's in the event of a loss of
coolant accident.

The management meeting of April 2nd, 1992, also
focused on several feedwater pump problems. One problem was
due to the failure of the control system power supply.

Mr. Rueger admitted, quote, "that PGLE may hav. been too
narrowly focused on the issue, causing PGLE to fi. the
existing equipment, rather than to gquestion the adequacy of
the design after repeated failures," end guote.

"Mr. Fujimoto noted that the equipment had been
redesig..d in February 1989, and that there was an attempt
to make the new design work rather than reassess the
design," end quote,

"Mr. Martin observed that," guote, "'it was not
typical of a strong engineering organization to wait for
several failures to fix a deficient design, particularly in
the case of these failures which resulted in challenges to
operators and the plant."

I don't know if you want me keep coing or not. 1
have several pages of this. But it all points to the fact
that problems keep occurring, and the reason for that that's
stated clearly by the NRC inspectors is that they look
symptomatic. They correct an equipment failure, but they

don't look at the cause, they don't look at the root causes
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they also can't pass on the cost of replacement parts to
their ratepayers under the CPUC rate making scheme that was
passed in 1988 by the California Public Utilities Commission
and, therefore, we really strongly believe that maintenance
problems now that are -~ the current problem is fixed, but
the overall root cause is not faced maybe -~ may continue in
the future and may get worse in the future as the
replacement parts become larger and more expensive to
replace.

We -- just reading an article that was recently
cited in the Public Utilities Fortnightly November 15th,
1992, they stated that many plants didn't get to the 20 to
25 years without encountering need for major overall at a
midlife crisis. This major overhaul in many cases can be
passed through to ratepayers, but that under the rate making
scheme in California, PGLE can't pass on any of these costs,
even if they're NRC requirements to ratepayers and,
therefore, we are concerned that they will either put them
off or argue against them continuously until they're either
forced to do so or someone says, "Well, maybe we can go
around it." That's why we're concerned. That's one of the
reasons that we feel that maintenance is not a generic
issue. One, that a poorly maintained plant two and a half
miles from an earthquake fault is a danger and, two, that

because they can't pass the costs of maintenance on to their
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ratepayers, that they may try to put off or stall

maintaining their plant as the plant ages. Right now the

parts == not all the

parts -~ some of the parts have been

there for quite some time, but some of the parts are not as

old and maintenance is not as difficult, but we do feel that

as time goes on, this

utility and they wili

is going to be a bigyger cost to the

hesitate to fix it in a timely manner.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: We have nothing to say about

the rate systenm,

MS. BECKER:

Abgolutely. I know that. It's just

one of our concerns about adding an extra life.

JUDGE SHON:

I know it's your concern and

understanding that this rate structure has, in your view, a

deleterious effect or might have.

MS. BECKER:
JUDGE SHON:
you're talking about,
represents in a sense
M5, BECKER:

JUDGE SHON:

That's correct.

But, surprisingly, the thing that
unless I misunderstand it, is one that
a sword that cuts both ways.

Abcolutely.

Becan=e Mr, Repka has already told us

that one of the reasons that we should believe that this is

a very, very well-run
factor.
MS. BECKER:

JUDGE SHON:

plant is that it has a high capacity

That's correct.

Which is exactly the point you're
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making, that by keeping their rates to capacity factor,
they're encouraged, you say, not to do needed maintenance.
You say is it a good thing because they have a high capacity
factor or a bad thing?

M6, BECKER: 1t is a double-edge sword and was
found as such by the Commission, And to supposedly rectify
that problem, they added an independent safety committee to
look into issues. Unfortunately, the safety committee has
no authority to do anything if they find something, but the
Commission also recognized the fact when they passed through
this rate making scheme, that it was a double edge sword.

JUDGE. BECHHOEFER: Which is this nuclear safety
committee you just mentioned?

MS. BECKER: 1It's called the Independent Safety
Committee for Diablo Canyon and then you have the chair of
the safety committee in your audience today.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: 1 see. And does Mothers for
Peace or any groups similar to yours have a representative
on that committee?

MS. VON RUDEN: We tried.

JUDGE BECHHOEFFR: 1It's happened -~

MS. BECKER: Well, unfortunately the utility made
sure that there were no members of the public on that
vommittee., You have to have experience, background, and

knowledge in the nuclear industry to be able to sit on the
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committee, so no, we're not on it.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: So there are plants where
representatives -~ former intervenor groups.

MS. BECKER: We have that kind of knowledge, but
none of us have worked at a nuclear power plant,

JUDGE KLINE: Understanding your argument, though,

what remedies do you seek? What relief would you count as

adequate? In other words, what are you asking the Board to
rule?

MS, BECKER: I'm just asking this Board to
consider the fact that maintenance is not a generic issue.
Many of the issues ~- the contentions that we brought before
this licensing Board have been argued as being generic, and
we feel that the fact that they can't pass these costs on to
ratepayers makes it an issue that is of genuine dispute in
our case where maintenance is a genuine icsue at nuclear
power plants.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Let me sort of rephrase Judge
Kline's question.

M8. BECKER: Okay.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: 1Is the only remedy you see for
this denying the extension completely, or do you think that
steps could be taken to force an improvement in the
maintenance plan?

MS. BECKER: My absc]l -3 preference would be deny
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additional regulation or does it create an undue public

hazard, or why is this not an adeguate proces., in your
view?

MS. BECKER: Jill, do you want to answer that?

MS, ZAMEK: I'm not sure 1 understood the
guestion.

MS. BECKER: 1 don't think that we said the

process isn't adequate. I think that what we're stating is
that there is a repeated pattern of violations at the plant
in maintenance, and if those continue, to give them an extra
13 to 15 years to violate safety regulations would be
certainly at a disadvantage to people who live here.

JUDGE KLINE: 1Is it error~free operations, then,
that you seek or ==

MS. BECKER: Oh, it would certainly be what we
would like, yes.

JUDGE KLINE: But can you practically seek it?
See, we're not asking just your sort of qualitative
preferences, The Board has to decide things, you know, one
way or another, up or down, and so we have to know what it
is you're asking for in the first place. And I guess if you
point to a process that was designed to correct what the -~
the deficiencies that you point to, we need to have some
qualification of why you think that process isn't working or

why you think it's effective. If the amendment were
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granted, presumably new violations would be found in future
inspections and presumably NRC would issue a notice of
violation and presumably the company would respond in some
way.

Now == and 1 don't want to get into any merits,
but this is the kind of process that would likely -~ is that
process faulty or fatally flawed or wrong, in your view?

MS., ZAMEK: Can I ==~

JUDGE KLINE: Does it not assure safety to do that

way?

MS. ZAMEK: Well, I think the idea is that we
count on the maintenance and surveillance programs to work
to protect us so that we don't have, you know, a series of
incidents that cause a problem. And so when we've
identified that it's not working, when we read this stuff
and we see the repeating patterns, when the NRC sites these
violations, and they're like little Band-Aids on it. That's
my impression on it. They fix that, but then really there
was something else that was, you know, this deeper cause,
and we're looking at the deeper issues here, these root
causes, and finding that the employees are not going to the
upper level management which I read in getting help with
this sort of stuff, and so =-- I lost my train of thought
there.

JUDGE KLINE: That's all right. Take your time.
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MS. ZAMEK: So 1 was saying that it's not working
in this case. 1It's shown that it's not working icause
despite corrective actions, they repeat the same problems
again and again, particularly in the employees, and we'll
get there in the next contention.

JUDGE KLINE: So you would ask us to draw an
inference that there's a pattern of behavior that hasn't
been fixed even though the individual point-by-point
inspections are being -~

MS., ZAMEK: Absolutely. You know, like the crane
boom incident, and then just shortly =-- and that could have
been a very serious incident. And then shortly after that,
there was another one with the two~ton chain fall which was
very similar., The loading stuff. And it showed that they
hadn't learned from the original incident, and that's the
sort of stuff that is bothering me.

I did find, too, in this -- you're asking for the
root causes. That's why I thought if you had this in your
hand, I could say, "Turn to page 6." But it's inspection
report 90-13 from August 13th, 1990, quote, "The inspection
report identified weaknesses regarding the timeliness of
PG&E's management systems in establishing the root cause of
problems and in implementing corrective actions to prevent
recurrences. The management systems designed to recognize,

raise, and pursue the resolution of problems were lacking
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during the report period," end guote.

JUDGE KLINE: Was it your view that -~ there wvas a
little phrase in there, "implementing corrective actions to
prevent recurrences." 1Is it your view that that did not
happen? 1 mean, was it ==~

MS. ZAMEK: Or it didn't happen in a timely
fashion.

JUDGE KLINE: 1 see.

MS. ZAMEK: Because sometimes they do, but it
takes them two years. They notice a problem, but it takes
them a long time to fix it,

And then the second one I found just looking
briefly was September 12th, 1992, inspection report -~ well,
the inspection report was from November 5th, 1992, but the
event was on September 12.

JUDGF BECHHOEFER: Which number report ==

MS. ZAMEK: I don't have a number on it. A lot of
times they don't have numbers on it. They just have the
dates. I don't know why.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Now, what was the --

MS. ZAMEK: The quote =-~

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: 1 mean, what was the date?

MS. ZAMEK: Oh, I'm sorry. The date of report was
November Sth, 1992, and it was involving the spurious

reopening of a main turbir stop valve and two governor
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valves during shutdown of Unit 1.

And they state, this is a guote, "The lack of
early full identification of the underlying safety issues in
this case indicuted a low level of safety awareness and a
less than fully penetrating technical review of precursor
events. The inspectore stated to the licensee that this
situation was a good example where a thoughtful review of
the relevant AR's could have revealed an ongoing plant issue
which could have been addressed and fixed befcre it became
self-revealing," end quote. And they talk about events that
happened previously that they daidin't learn f:iom,

JUDGE SHON: Thank you. I think thet it's my
guestion you were responding to at the beginning.

MS. ZAMEK: Oh, I'm sorry.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: 1Is that all of the sort of
general statements on Contention I that ynu have? Because
we'll get into some of the specifics paragraph by paragraph
almost,

MS. ZAMEK: Okay.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Mr. Repka, anything you want to
at least make a general statement as to -~ I have one thing
I wanted tu ask concerning this. You've discussed SALP
ratings and you've placed a lot of emphasis in maintenance
and surveillance on Level 2., Now, Level 2 is just no better

than average. It's intermediate, And 1 wonder why you've
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stressed that. One I can see, and one is superior,
according to the staff, Two is just they're doing what they
should do, a normal inspection after it and all that kind of
stuff comes out, too,

MR. REPKA: There's a number of things 1 want to
respond to.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: I don't know what your point
was. And I'd also like to ask you, on the maintenance area,
the record 1 have here, which is -~ I did a little quick
research, I looked at a document called NUREG 1214, which
lists SALP ratings for years past and the maintenance arvea
Diablo Canyon used to be one, now there are two, and if you
project things, does that go through and then unsatisfactory
or don't you do it that way?

MR. REPKA: Clearly that's an -~

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: 1I'm saying, do you draw a line
that way? Or how do you look at these things? You used to
be 1, now you're 2 on that,

MR. REPKA: 1 mean, the petitioners hav~ left me
with a number of things to address, and you've asked me some
gquestions.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: 1 realize that., 1 realize
that.

MR. REPKA: First on the SALP, I think you start

from an erroneous proposition when you say Category 2 is no

ANN RILEY & ASSOCIATES, Ltd.
Court Reporters
1612 K. Street, N'W., Suite 300
Washington, D. C. 20006
(202) 293-3950



10

11

12

13

14

16

17

18

19

20

21

23

24

25

better tha average. Category 2 is defined by the SALP

program itself as good performance. It's performance in
excess of what's necessary., It's performance better than a
mere regulatory compliance. A Category 2 I don't think you
can shrug off and say Category 2 is -- you know, that's just
doing what © 're supposed to do, because by definition it's
doing more 4N you're supposed to do., That's the
definition of a Category 2.

We put a lot of focus == we try to find ~- the
basic point here, and what we're hearing more of this
morning is <= I think it's the petitioners who are losing
the forest for the trees. The system, the process that's in
place, the normal licensee reporting system, the NRC's
inspection enforcement program is intended to provide, A,
licensee self-analysis of what'. going on at the plant and
self-correction, Number 2, NRC enforcement and inspection
overview to ensure that we maintain regulatory compliance,
and that process does work as proven -- these are the
examples that prove the rule that process does work.

But the NRC's precedence show =~ and 1 think the
legal standards are not ones of absolute erfection.

They're ones of reasonable pursuing of safety. Yes, we
would like to achieve absolute perfection and make no
personnel errors, but that's not always possible, and the

fact is, none of these events are safety significant, and
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we've tried to find the big picture performance programmatic
indicator,.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Conclusory? 1 mean, isn't that
one view, but not the only view?

MR. REPKA: Well, I think that's -~ the fact is
under the NRC's requirements and the NRC's case law, when
you talk about a program such as a maintenance program or a
guality assurance program, individual isoclated events are
not events that could lead to any relief in an NRC
proceeding absent some indication of a programmatic problem,
and if you look at the program at Diablo Canyon, you look at
what the NRC has said about it, it's completely at odds with
what the petitioners would have you believe.

A Category 2 SALP rating does mean something. It
does mean the program is working. If the program was as bad
as what's presented here, if root causes were not being
corrected, if we were being dilatory consistently across the
board, believe me, the NRC Staff would not rate this a
Category 2 plant in maintenance. Inspection report 9222
which we've cited in our papers very plainly says, and I'll
guote it again, "Normal maintenance and surveillance
activities observed by the inspectors appear to be well
thought out and deficiencies propesly dispositioned.
Licensee's operations and maintenance personnel appear

professional and dedicated in accomplishing their work.
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Training of license to nonlicensed operations personnel
appear to have been well timed."

In my experience, and I think the experience of
all those around me, the NRC Staff and the NRC inspectors
don't give accolades in their inspection reports lightly.
They're not known for -~ I think the petitioners this
morning suggested that these kind of things are all kind of
boiler plate and they're in all inspection reports. That
simply is not the case. The NRC does not tell a licensee
it's doing a good job, its program is f_ :tioning
effectively if that's not the case. No good regulator would
do that,

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Right, but wasn't that just a
listing of strengths; that if you go to the next paragraph,
they found some weaknesses, too? They're both -~

MR. REPKA: The point is, the strengths are the
overall program, The weakness is maybe an individual event
an individual slipup. And -~

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Well, are you saying that if
you have enough of the latter, you aren't overlooking the
problematic indications? 1If you have enough slipups ==

MR. REPKA: There are no findings here that say
the program has a generic problem. There are no findings
here that says there is something wrong with the program or

the way it's being implemented.
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elements of the plant into one category.

Again, we hear this morning about the September
1991 SALP report. 1 want to again focus on the big picture
of what the NRC said. 1In the cover letter, it says the SALP
report found your overall performance to be very good, in
some cases superior, and clearly directed towards safe
facility operation. And then it goes on to talk about some
specific strong performance areas., including plant
operations, which was the Category 1 I alluded to earlier.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Right.

MR. REPKA: I think we have to focus -- if we're
looking for the basis of a contention here, we have to focus
on the big picture, not the minutia, that simply demonstrate
the system that's in place works.

JUDGE SHON: But Mr. Repka, again what we have
what appears to be the exact sort of dispute that is to be
resclved by hearings or by submissions and motions for
summary disposition or something like that. Miss Zamek says
they said you aren't giving enough management attention,
you're not doing that, and you say, "Well, that was for
different kinds of things that have mixed apples and oranges
and we're really doing very well." 1Isn't that exactly what
this process is meant to sourt out? Doesn't that go to the
merits rather than to the admissibility?

MR, REPKA: 1 think historically that may have
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Commission revised its threshold standards to specifically
eliminate that scenario. All of what we're talking about
here is based on publicly available records, publicly
available documents, documents that speak for themselves.
This Board can look at those documents just the same as I
can or the petitioners can, and we can see on their face
what is really going on here. We can see what the scope o1
those findings are. We can compare them to the programmatic
findings, and the Commission threshold standard for
Commission contentions is a finding of general issue in
dispute. And I would submit that all of these things -~ and
we could stipulate that these inspection reports and these
inspection findings exist and they are what the NRC Staff
has found, but they simply do not add up, taken together, to
a programmatic weakness,

JUDGE KLINE: But isn't that a judgment on the
merits? That's the part that I would like further
explanation on, because as I understand it, you would seek a
finding of fact that no adverse inference could be drawn
from these reports, and the Mothers for Peace would seek a
finding of fact that such an adverse inference could be
drawn, and that certain regulatory consequences would then
flow from one finding or the other, but isn't this really a

finding of fact that would emerge from a hearing, not to be
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taken into account at the contention admission stage?

MR. REPKA: No. 1It's a finding of the basis
required by the Commission for an admissible contention,

The basis must be a genuine issue in dispute, one that could
entitle the petitioner to relief in the proceeding. That's
the essence, that's a direct paraphrase of the new rule.

And that requires that you look at these findings and
requires -- you know, it requires a basis for a contention,
and we submit that there simply is no such basis.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Miss Hodgden, do you have
anything to say about contention? Generally, Contention 1
ve may get to specific -~

MS. HODGDON: Generally, Contention I. I'm not
sure that -~ yee. I will address it generally to the extent
that it was addressed generally, and that is the staff
objects ==

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: I do have one gquestion.

MS. HODGDON: Yes. What happened to the three
lines at the bottom of page 12 and the top of page 137 Is
that your question?

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: No.

MS. HODGDON: No.

JUDGE KLINE: That's another one.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: That's another one. We haven't

gotten to those detalls.
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The staff, as far as I can see, and I searched,
didn't say one word about SALP ratings one way or the other,
and my question is, should SALP ratings even been looked at
by a board? And I say this having looked at them in some
proceedings in the past, but shouldn't we be looking at SALP
ratings one way or the other?

MS. HODGDON: Well, I could say something funny
and say that the reason that the contention was admitted in
Vermont Yankee was because the licensee relied on SALP to
its detriment. So I don't know. Of course, the SALP has a
reason for being, and it's very useful. But, however, it
results in just exactly what's going on here; that the
petitioner says, "It says here weaknesses," and the licensee
says, "It says here strengths," and so it does say both of
those things. And I don't know that a factual issue is
really joined there, because those are all judgements which
the NRC understands, and I think the licensee does, too.

Our response does not address SALP. That is true.
We do not. And so we don't ~- our basis =-- our judgment of
the admissibility of Contention I is not based on SALP
reports. Our feeling, our judgment is that Contention I
does not raise a genuine issue of material fact that's
cognizable in this proceeding. Beyond that, it probably
wouldn't be admissible even under the old standard, because

it lacks basis and specificity.
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When you look closely at the inspection reports,
et cetera, and the LER's that the petitioner relies on, you
see that all of those things taken in context don't
represent what the petitioner says that they represent.
Therefore, I would objec* to the intervenor's coming in here
today -- the petitioners, rather -- excuse me -- coming in
here today and wanting to introduce more inspection reports,
notice of violation which we're not prepared on, because I
brought everything that they identified.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: I got a lot of them to the
extent they fit in my briefcase.

MS. HODGDON: Well, I have everything on certain
subject matters, but these other ones, I think that if I
looked at them closely, I would see that those two are
thinags that are taken out of context or they're not on the
subject matter that they purport to be on, and so we don't
have the opportunity to do that here. And I don't think
that the Board should entertain anything beyond the
petitioner's original basis. If they did, then certainly
the staff and the licensee would be entitled to file a reply
in writing to what they have sought to introduce here today.
It goes far beyond the responses.

JUDGE KLINE: But the admission of a contention at
this stage is still a procedure matter, not a factual, and

the fact that you disagree with them on whether these
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inspection reports show anything significant or not, isn't
that a factual dis -~

MS. HODGDON: No, it's not. And in fact, I don't
disagree with them about the significance. 1 disagree with
their characterization and with their reliance as a basis.
For example, they use an enforcement conference where
certain people said certain things. That enforcement
conference was geared toward an enforcement action, which
did not take place. Therefore, what anybody said there
can't be relied on for the fact that this was a maintenance
problem or a surveillance problem. In addition, this was
identified in an LER which they don't tell us about, and so
when you look at this in context, you see that it's not at
all what the petitioner makes it out to be, and s¢ I think
that their basis has to be looked at in context. 1 mean,
what -~

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Well, isn't that, too, an
evidentiary questicn, though?

MS. HODGDON: No, it's not. 1It's a problem of
basis. They don't have a basis, because their basis, when
seen in context, disappears. That is not an evidentiary
matter. That is a matter of their not raising a genuine
issue or of their mischaracterizing documents, their
unwillingness to look at a document. They're willing to go

through what we have seen here this morning, they comb
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through and they look for certain key words, weakness and
words like that, and then -« and they think that all adds up
to something, but it's not additive, because they're not
about the same subject matter. They don't necessarily ==~
they don't look at the resolution of the problem. And I
just think that, no =-- I mean, what it is is a lack of
basis. It's not an evidentiary matter.

JUDGE SHON: Miss Hodgdon, what I understand, I
think what you're, in effect, saying is that the petitioners
have combed through certain staff documents, have picked
only the bad parts and not looked at the overall conclusion
of those documents, and that when we assess whether or not a
genuine issue of fact exists, we should look at the overall
conclusion of the document rather than simply at the bad
parts or simply at the good parts since all documents have
both of these things? Is that --

MS. HODGDON: Yes. My point is that the staff
brief tries to show these bases in context. I think it's
proper for the Board to assess these bases that were
originally offered in the context in which they should be
seen. And that should be the Board's task here.

JUDGE SHON: Then the only way we could really
accomplish this is to look individually at each of the
documents, LER's, conference reports, inspection reports,

and so on that the staff or the applicant has produced and
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try to essess whether the overall import of each document is
as the intervenor -- as the petitioners say it will be or as
the staff and the licensee say it will be? Is that the way
we're supposed to proceed, do you thiak?

MS. HUDGDON: Well, the way you characterize it,
it sounds like an onerous chore. And in fact, it was an
onerous chore of finding some of the documents, because they
weren't properly identified, but we found the documents, we
read the documents, and we tried to provide a context, and 1
think that our assessment of them is fair, but certainly the
Board may look at these documents itself and see what it
thinks of the basis in the context in which it appears,
which is not the way the petitioner has offered it. So,
yes, I don't know that you have to read every word on these
subiects, but certainly if an issue is raised and it's been
closed out, then it certainly is appropriate to i . at
whero it wes closed out and nat just look at this issue that
was raised as if it were stil. a living issue. 8o, ves. 1

JUDGE SHON: And you also say that the staff has
looked at least at all the documents that were cited that
you could get a hold of that were mentioned in the original
supplement to the ,.etition, although there seem to be sonme
others that have come up at this point.

MS. HODGDON: We object to those. We cbject -~
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1 JUDGE SHON: And you object to our taking any
. 2 notice of those whatever, and after you have analyzed thenm,
3 you have found that there is none -~ that there are none of
4 them that show any reason for further investigation or in
5 every case the document's overall conclusion we effect
6 favorable to the licensee; is that right?
7 MS. HODGDON: I don't beiieve that notices of
8 violation are favorable to the licensee. I mean, but I do
9 believe that these things were not of major safety
10 significance. These were category 4 and § -~ I mean, yes.
11 Levels -- severity levels oi 4 and 5 which are of lesser
12 significance. These violations that the Mothers -- that the
13 petitioners sought to introduce. So I think that some of
. 14 them certainly have some significance. Some of them might
15 even have minor safety significance. They have whatever
16 significance we say they had in our responses, becauce that
17 is where we looked at them and offered them in context. 1
18 think that Contention I lacks a basis in that it doesn't
19 show anything about Diablo Canyon that if unusual with
20 regard to surveillance and maintenance that would cause it
21 not to be able to get it's CP recaptured that (t's applied
22 for.
23 JUDGE SHON: In other words, although some of them
24 may have resulted in notices oi violations, these were all
25 Category 3 or 47
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MS. HOOGDON: They were 4 or 5. They were not 3.

JUDGE SHON: 4 or 5. No 3's. And that Category 4
and 4 violations are not the sort of thing that would lead
one to deny a licenue or refuse to extend a license or to do
anything to cause the plant to suspend operations; is that
right?

MS. HODGDON: That is correct up to a certain
point. I should say that even a Category 3 violation would
not involve the denial of a license. But what we're talking
about is what the patitioner put in here originally, and
what the petitioner put in here doesn't amount to much, and
that's what we say in our response.

JUDGE SHON: At least it doesn't amount to enough
to justify the relief they have asked?

MS. HODGDON: That is correct,

JUDGE KLINE: As I understand it, there is no
dispute that these violations took place ard that they were
closed out in some sense to at least the regulator's
satisfaction, but what the NRC Staff has used in the past in
its enforcement practice, a practice called accumulation or
something -- I've forgotten the exact words.

MS. HODGDON: Oh, you mean you add up a number of
small ones and you get =--

JUDGE ELINE: Add up the small ones and you get to

a higher severity level penalty, and what it appears to me
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MR. REPKA: The extension period clearly could not
be conditioned -- I mean, could not be denied based on that.
As far as a pattern of maintenance, I think you have to lock
at the evidence again and sece does the evidence really
support that? And I don't think it does here. I don't
think what's offered doesn't even remotely suggest that
conclusion.

T think if you look at the whole pattern issue,
the NRC Staff clearly has not come to that conclusion. They
have not said that anything more or anything different needs
to be done about maintenance, and I don't think there's any
basis for this Board to conclude now or following an
evidentiary hearing that some further condition needs to be
put on the license. I just don't see that as a realistic
possibility.

JUDGE KLINE: It may not turn out to be that as a
matter of fact, but the =-- but is it somehow ruled out in
principle that that is to say can we decide now that no such
relief could be granted?

MR. REPKA: 1I think if a condition -- if a =--
assuming number one, the maintenance issue, were within the
scope of the proceeding, an argument we haven't addressed
here this morning and one which I'm not concluding here, we
continue to believe that maintenance implementation issues

are really NRC inspection, enforcement, 10 CFR 2.206 issues.
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It's the time limitation. 1It's not that we were too
ignorant to read all the documents. It's that time limited
us to basically trying to find these things that the NRC had
considered a violation. And that is why our documents are
limited and oL~ research. Not because we weren't aware that
there weren't ot :r sources.

MS. CULVER: Can I add a little bit to that?

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Please.

MS. CULVER: We obviously are working with some
handicaps that PG&E and NRC Staff do not share, and I think
it's important for us for you to understand what some of
those are, and June has just outlined some. After we were
informed that our public document room was hooked up to the
new dock system so that we could have access to the document
room in Washington, we thought that that was wonderful, only
to discover that the only person who knew how to use it
retired at the beginning of October, just about the time we
really needed him. So there's another person trying to use
it, but she's often not there and she's also told us that we
can't use it after 2:00 p.m. Well, we have jobs and
families, and it's very, very difficult under those
conditions. Now, I'm not sure that's true, because someone
in Washington said that other intervenors actually use it in
the evening, but she said and we've been told in our

document room that the computer in Washington closes down at
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and the PDR does not have the current CFR public health
regulations. And that's not the only document we found
missing, by the way, but that's certainly one that we needed
to give you some sense -~

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: New documents are supposed to
be updated to within a day or two of whatever date you're
looking at. Whether that's always the case, 1 don't know.
But, theoretically, it's supposed to be.

MS. CULVER: You could give Jill a scholarship to
send her to Washington because you've used that.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: 1 have taken a couple of
courses on how to do new documents, and it isn't that easy.

JUDGE KLINE: But the rebuttal arguments that you
heard this morning really don't address the notion that you
haven't come forward with enough inspection reports. The
real issue is what do they mean, and one of the arguments is
that internally the documents contain statements that don't
support what you're saying about them. In other words, if
the document says, "Hey, this was a Level 4 violation, it's
now all closed out to the satisfaction of staff," why is
there additional significance to be attributed to it? I
mean, it came to life, it got addressed, and it got put to
bed. Why is that not adequate in your view? That's the
thing you're going to have to try to address to us.

MS. ZAMEK: By the sheer number and repetitiveness

ANN RILEY & ASSOCIATES, Ltd.
Court Reporters
1612 K. Street, NW., Suite 300
Washington, D. C. 20006
(202) 293-3950



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

89
of them have produced a pattern that I've identified just
with the CFCU's, for instance, is one. Well, they were
violated for that -- they received violations for that, but
ther, 3.4 know, a month later there's another problem with
it, et cetera, et cetera, et cetera. They keep recurring,
like I said. They don't go to the root causes to find their
problems. They find a missing bolt, oh, they just put the
new bolt back in. They're, well, they took care of that
problem, but they really didn't, because the bolt came out
for some other reason that they didn't look to, and that's
our coustention.

JUDGE KLINE: Let me ask the Mothers for Peace,
one of the arguments that was pressed this morning is if you
take a specific document and in one paragraph it says these
fellows are rascals and in the final conclusion it says but
after all, they're doing all right, and so the document
appears to contain contradictory statements, can we rely on
it, in your view, as a basis for an admission of a
contention when the document itself doesn't really support
unambiguously what you're claiming for?

MS. ZAMEK: 1 think when you get enough of those
comments like I've been reading that it adds up to, yes, you
can use that as a basis for a contention. I don't know if
it's appropriate to say right now, but maybe I'm feeling a

little attacked, buvt, you know, I've heard comments that we
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don't know what weaknesses mean and we don't know how to
read these documents, but I'm not a lawyer and I'm not a
nuclear physicist, but I am an intelligent woman, and I've
read these documents and I understand the documents, and I
war really impressed with how well they're written so that
people like myself can understand them, and where, you know,
previous to this I wouldn't have had the foggiest notion
what things were, they really explained the process of these
events and what happens first, and I think I do have a good
understanding, and I could see the significance of some of
these events. You know, and I always -~ 1 see -- read these
comments about this problem, this problem, this problem, but
overall you say but overall its adequate. Well, you know, 1
weigh them, too, and 1 lock and see, but they said this, and
that didn't sound very adequate, so ==

JUDGE KLINE: 1Is it your intention, then, if the
contention were admitted, to make an evidentiary
precentation showing not just individual deficiencies, but
something that would support an inference of a pattern of
deficiencies?

MS. ZAMEK: I can't say for sure what we would do,
but I would think that we would get enough of these together
to show a pattern, that we would have enough time where we
could organize these and show a pattern even more so than we

have,
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JUDGE BECHHOEFER: I have a question, one or two
guestions, actually, 1'd like to ask the applicant.
Concerning one of the citations was to the enforcement
conference which was said, and the way I read Appendix C, I
guess it is, enforcement conferences are not normally held
for Level 4 viclations, but -- and I'm guoting now, "they
may be scheduled if increased management attention is
warranted," end guote. That's right from Appendix C.

Now, did scmecne on the staff at least decide that
maybe increased management attention to the matters talked
about at the enforcement conference was warranted in order
to schedule a conference at all?

MR. REPKA: Obviously, to schedule a conference at
all, the NRC was considering the significance of an
individual event and had not yet made up its mind as to what
severity level to assign and what observations =-- what
lessons are to be learned from the matter that was the
subject of the enforcement conference.

As I understand it, an enforcement conference is
not a preordained thing. The NRC does not know what
enforcement action is going to come out of it until after
the conference. That is the licensee's opportunity to
present what happened and its views on the significance of
that.

I just frankly don't think you can take comments
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from an enforcement conference and say that somehow that
has meaning here and that -- I mean, the enforcement
conference ~- the results of the enforcement conference
are the important thing.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Well, the statements are made
under oath, are they not?

MR. REPKA: The statements are not made under oath
but, of course, any statement to the NRC is made to be true
and accurate in all material respects so, I mean, that's a
given. And in fact, the statements, I'm sure, were accurate
representations of what the individuals involved believe.
But those are -- again, are not necessarily related to
maintenance.

I think the particular ones we're talking about
here as we pointed out in our papers really was not a
maintenance matter., That's number one. And number two, you
again have to look at the significance to the context of an
enforcement conference. The object of an enforcement
conference is to be self-critical, to be self-analytical, to
show that you understand the root cause of the incident
that's being discussed, and to show that you're correcting
it, so in a sense those are statements against interests
that are now being used against us when the reality is that
the NRC decided it was not a safety significant violation

and that we've taken corrective actions to address whatever
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in fact occurred.

One other point. The enforcement conference was a
good example in which initially the issue was operability of
the equipment, and after reviewing the licensee's
presentation and the follow-up submittal . n operability, the
NRC determined that operability was not in fact an issue a..d
didn't issue a violation of technical specifications, so
yes -~

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Well, was there not in fact a
maintenance problem that they did find there?

MR. REPKA: There was a maintenance problem.

There was a failure to use -~

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Well, isn't that what these
people were talking about, the maintenance problems and
problem and the -~

MR. REPKA: Yes. But it is one operation
violation, a -- I mean, there is not a plant in this country
that does not have a, guote, pattern of viclations and
inspection findings. That's, quite frankly, the nature of
the beast, and violations do occur, but, you know, this one
does not have programmatic significance, and taken all
together, what's been offered does not add up to a pattern.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Does anyone -- I'm not sure we
need to go into every single allegation in Contention I, but

is there any comments on any specific allegation that the
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Mothers for Peace would like to -- because we're just trying

to debate whether -- how useful it would be to go over each
paragraph separately or not. We've heard gquite a bit about
your general thrust, which is what we were trying to get.

MS. BECKER: 1 have a comment to Judge Kline's
guestion about our going on with this proceeding if our
contention was admitted. We have already contacted expert
witnesses and sent them copies of our contentions, PG&E's
responses and the NRC's responses, so we don't intend to
only represent ourselves if a contention is allowed. We
have expert witnesses who would come forth, so it wouldn't
just be us bringing up more information. And then 1 have
two procedural gquestions.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Are any of those witnessas -~
do you have their names that you'd like to provide or =--

MS. BECKER: Not at the moment, but they do -~
they have testified in other NRC proceedings. They are
people who are gqualified to be expert witnesses and have
been gqualified by the NRC in the past.

And, secondly, I have two procedural guestions
about this evening's public comment period.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Yes,.

MS. BECKER: 1In the past with NRC and PUC
proceedings that have been held in San Luis Obispo, there's

been a sign-up table in the back so =--
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JUDGE BECHHOEFER: 1 left a sheet of yellow paper.

JUDGE SHON: 1It's in the front today.

MS. BECKER: Well, gee, no wonder nobody saw it.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: 1I'm sorry. I should have
mentioned that. I put a yellow sheet of paper, and that's
about as good as any.

MS. BECKER: 1If there could be one of these other
tiny, little tables out in the hallway that said "Sign-up
sheet," I think people would know that it existed, because
we reaiized that -- we received a fax that members of a
group called Citizens for Adequate Energy, which is a group

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: We received those fax --

MS. BECKER: -~ thit it obviously opposed what
we're here for will be here to speak, and we want to make
sure that there's other people who will be able to sign up.
And secondly =--

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Well, we're going to make an
attempt to hear everybody.

MS. BECKER: Good luck.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Whether there will be enough
time or not, I don't know, but we will not do it necessarily
just for people from a single group, but we'll try to mix it
up a little bit and, if necessary, we might even be back

here tomorrow for the same purpose, but I'm not sure.
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MS. BECKER: 1If additional parties want to file
to the service list, can that be done today? 1s there a
forum =~

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Well, a service list, that's a
problem. I don't think parties normally can get put on a
service list, at least in terms of obligations of the
party's here to serve them.

Occasionally, we have allowed certain groups to be
put on the service list. We put -- we did put on the
service list two groups. One, I think, is the Public
Utility Commission, and another was another group I have
back here someplace when they wrote in and requested it,
but I don't think we would do that as an unlimited.

MS. BECKER: There's a Ratepayers Advocate Group
that's interested in this that represent ratepayers, and
they wanted to be added to the service list, I will ask
them to write on their own stationery to you? 1Is that the
procedure?

MR. REPKA: Judge Bechhoefer, from our
perspective --

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: There was one group that wrote
in that I permitted, and the Public Utility Commission wrote
in for two people, and I told the secretary to put two
names, but one address, on the list and just send one copy,

but the -~
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technically, I'm just not sure how some of these things
work. I know the Commission has had to cut back for expense
reasons. Everybody's budget is under fire these days.

MS. ZAMEK: Could I -- I'm sorry.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Anyway, are there further
comments on anything in Contention 17?7

MS. ZAMEK: 1 do =~

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: I think we're going to break
for lunch after that.

MS. ZAMEK: I do have cne comment, and it has to
do with really semantics. In Contention =~

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: This is just I.

MS. ZAMEK: Pardon?

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: This is just Contention I.

MS. ZAMEK: Right. In Contention I on =~

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Because we'll get to the others
after lunch.

MS. ZAMEK: On page 7, it was written, the Mothers
for Peace wrote, in fact, "NRC has repeatedly cited PG&E for
slow response to maintenance problems," and et cetera. And
it received a great deal of criticism, because two LER's
were cited and, of course, that wasn't NRC criticizing them,
and it was really a matter of semanti¢s. It should have
been more like evidence shows repeated slow response, et

cetera, et cetera, but -- and then again, I've used that -~
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criticized by the NRC when I used an LER, so -- but I still
-=- and so that kind of -- that evidence was kind of thrown
out by the NRC Staff because of that error, when in
actuality that evidence, I think the crux of the evidence is
still pertinent. And whether it was an LER or a notice of
viclation or inspection report, whatever it is, if it shows
that there is a problem, I think that it should be
considered.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: And, of course, the LER is the
applicant's =-=-

ME, ZAMEK: PG&E, right, but it's still better
when they admit that there's a problem. It still, I think,
can be admitted for evidence; isn't that true?

MR. REPKA: But I would point out that some of
these LER's were voluntary LER's, and if the LER didn't
result in an NRC inspection =-- or enforcement action, that's
just a further indication of the lack of significance of
what was involved.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Purely technically on that same
page, I think the inspection that you referred to should
have been March 17th through April 27 technically, but =--
May 12 is the day the letter was written.

MS. ZAMEK: Oh, and I'm supposed to put the whole

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: I'm just --
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MS. ZAMER: And I noticed, too, there were two
mistakes in one LER number was wrong, one inspection report
numnber was wrong. That was a typo.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: There was one other one where
the date was ten days off, which makes a big difference if
you use new documents.

MS. HODGDON: It was August the -- they said
August the 3rd. It should have been the 13th.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Right.

MS. ZAMEK: Sorry.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: And if you use the new
documents, that's crucial, because you plug in a date and
you plug in a docket number, and theoretically it all will
come up, but --

MS. HODGDON: There was another one where they
said '91 -~ '92 and it should have said '91.

MS, ZAMEK: I caught that.

MS. HODGDON: 1If I could speak, I don't want to
interrupt, but as long as we're making corrections here,
just to make these comprehensible, in the Staff's response
on page 13 where there's a superscript 7. That's wrong, of
course. Somehow or other, it got up there. It should
be -~ instead of where it is on the third line on page 13,
it should be at the third line under "Containment fan cooler

units" at the end of that sentence. That first sentence, it
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should say, "is an enforcement conference report superscript
7," because footnote 7 goes to that and not to the -- where
it's indicated.

Also, there are three or four lines missing
between 12 and 13, but I won't bother to put those in,
because they're just a characterization of the petitioner's
pleading, and I just don't want to take up everybody's time
with that, The 7 is important, because you can't understand
it withecut that. 1t's wrong. The other thing is just not
important, so I'l1l skip over that.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Okay. Is there anything else
on Contention I? Because I think we'll adjourn, then, for
lunch and come back and start with Contention 1I.

Okay. Off the record.

(Whereupon, at 12:29 p.m., the prehearing was

recessed for lunch to reconvene at 1:30 p.m. this same day.)
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AFTERNOON SESSION
(1:48 p.m.)
JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Back on the record.
I guess we'll now proceed to Contention Roman I1.
And ask the Mothers for Peace whether they have any
additional statements they wish to make.

One guestion I have, though, is to what extent --
and in your statement you could respond to this. To what
extent do these matters list incidents or the events listed
relate to the maintenance program which is mentioned in the
last paragraph of the contention? And, of course, we spent
a long time talking earlier about that maintenance, but I
wanted to see how much of this could be related to the
maintenance program which is apparently the conclusory
paragraph of the contention.

$0 in addressing this contention, you may wish to
talk about that, too.

MS. ZAMEK: Okay. 1I'll do that now while I
remember. Where 1 say "Maintenance program must rely on
experienced, qualified workers"? Is that what you're
referring to?

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Yes. And to what extent do any
of these examples involve either the maintenance program or
something related to the maintenance program? That's what I

was trying to figure out.
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MS. ZAMEK: Right. I think primarily this
contention just referred to personnel errors, because even
though they have plans in place for maintenance and
surveillance and all these programs that they have, this
contention shows -- the evidence contention shows that
oftentimes these procedures aren't followed, which is what
gets them into so much trouble, and despite corrective
measures where they have, you know, training programs and
get talked to, they repeat these errors. Maybe not the same
people, but other members, and these things just keep
happening.

I know on one of the contentions, this fellow
wasn't going to follow it because he thought he would save
time, and he ended up with this chemical mist., There's just
numerous examples of sloppy work, and the way it ties in is
it negatively affects the maintenance program. That's how
it ties in.

If you ask if I want to say anything else, of
course, I have a lot more evidence that I could quote a few
more, if that's allowed, I'd like to say more -- I have some
SALP report comments, et cetera.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Yes., In terms of not accepting
a contention, you probably should not mention anything that
wasn't mentioned earlier.

MS. ZAMEK: 1In the original contention?
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JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Well, in the version that we're
ruling on. The =-~

MS. ZAMEK: Okay

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: The October, I think it was.

MS. HODGDON: 26th.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: October 26th, I guess -~
anyway, that's the statement that everybody's had a chance
to comment on.

MS. ZAMEK: Okay.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: -~ and respond to, so ==

MS. ZAMEK: Okay. Well, I would like to say that
I know thai the NRC Staff commented that our -- that, again,
our cites Jere also isolated incidents that inevitably
occur, et cetera, et cetera, and I really believe there's no
basis for that claim, because we have shown that there are
personnel problems and that they're recurring and that
they're pervasive, and the high number of them show that
this is something that's persisted. Well, it has persisted.
It's persisted in the past and will continue in the future,
and that corrective measures have been ineffective. And
does anybody else want to add anything on that?

Okay.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: 1Is the major focus of your
problems or worries about personnel, the maintenance

program, or other areas as well? Because you seem to have
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tied it to the maintenance program, and that could be useful
or == 1 mean, it could be supplementary to what you said in
Contention 1 or it could be something broader, and there may
be differing baces for considering it in those context.

Jill, my interest in the personnel performance is
the trend of personnel errors reflects a degradation of safe
operation at the piant, because had they made mistakes, the
operation of the plant suffers oftentimes. And wve're
interested in safe operation, of course.

MS. BECKER: 1 believe in addition, Judge
Bechhoefer, *hat the possible lack of trained personnel in
the future when you're adding 13 to 15 years of life on to
this plant, could be at issue. We read a number of
documents. Unfortunately, they're newspaper articles, but

ting that people ~~ new people going into the nuclear

stry are br ing fewer and fewer and the availability
of trained personnel when you're adding on to a lifetime of
a plant could » ome a problem in those later years.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Well, d» you have any
indication, for instance, that if they did nct have
adeguately trained personnel, staff would Just shut down the
operation for reasons of that sort?

MS. BECKER: Do 1 have any information to the
contrary?

JUDGE PECHHOEFER: Right,

ANN RILEY & AS_OCIATES, Ltd.
Court Reporters
1612 K. Street, NW,, Suite 300
Washington, D. C. 20006
(202) 293-3950



10
11
12
13
14
156
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

106

MS. BECKER: No. No, I don't.

MS. ZAMEK: Well, there are some cases cited here
that show that they use untrained, uncertified workers for
jobs that they shouldn't be doing. You know, they just
grab -~ it's like they just grab somebody and say, "Here, do
this," and that's Leen the problem in some of the instances.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Okay. Mr. ==

MR. REPKA: A number of comments, first, I think
on the personnel area there's a fundamental legal issue
regarding the scope of the proceeding. The technical
gualifications of tae licensee were in issue in the original
licensing of the plant. And we do not believe that it
should be in issue here again. The fact is, thie is not a
new license. It's not in the initial licensing proceeding.
S0 1 don't think we can just leap, as 1 said earlier today,
into a conclusion that everything that might have been
admissible as a subject matter in the initial licensing case
would again be admissible here, so technical qualifications
are in no way changed by the amendment at issue. There's no
change to our training programs. No change to our ability
to manage and address personnel errors. It's simply outside
the scope of this proceeding.

JUDGE BECHHCEFER: Well, are you saying that if
the examples were to show that personnel were rather

routinely ungqualified to do what they were supposed t do
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and there were many personnel errors, that that can't be
taken into account in determining whether you should have
another 10 or 15 years or 12 or 15 years? 1Is that what
you're telling me?

MR. REPKA: That's precisely what I'm saying. And
it's not that it won't be taken into account. 1It's not in
the jurisdiction of this Board. The NRC Staff ultimately
will issue this amendment., It's the NRC Staff who has to
make that call. It's an implementation issue. It's one
that they will address in their review. It would not be
ignored., But it's outside the scope of the amendment;
therefore, it's fundamentally outside the scope of this
proceeding, That's point number one, the basic legal point,
I don't think we can just set aside in looking at this issue
or any of the issues.

The second point is, is we're talking more
about -~

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Well, are vou ilso saying that
2.206 is the scle remedy for issues of this type? Because 1
believe there's considerable authority in the past saying
2,206 == even though 2.206 may be available, it doesn't
preclude a contention in a licensing context. In many cases
where it was done where a contention could have been
admitted either way. Of course, there's no judicial or even

Commission review of the 2.206 deternination. That's solely
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a staff operation now with very limited axceptions for ==

MR. REPKA: 1'm saying that 2.206 is the available
forum just like it is for any imple sentation operational
issue af - ae initial license is issued., That's the case.
Now, it's not 2.206 that says -~ it's not the availability
of 2,206 that determines the jurisdiction of this Board one
way or the other. The fact is, 2.206 is an available forum.
What determines the jurisdiction of this Board is the
avendment,

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Well, is it even a forum? 1
mean, 2,206 doesn't offer anything in the way of hearing
rights

MR. REPKA: Well, there are many, many things that
go on in the operation of a nuclear power plant that are not
subject to hearing rights. That's the fundamental tenor of
the Atomic Energy Act. The hearing rights available are
defined by section 189 and they're triggered by certain
licensing events, and in this case, broadly speaking, it's
an amendment, but it ls the scope of that amendment that
defines the hearing rights. And this amendment does nothing
regarding technical qualifications, it does nothing
regarding training, and it does nothing regarding personnel
errors. That's the fundamental legal point, point number
one.

The second point is we're hearing more individual
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isolated occurrences, isolated events. The petitioners
again talk about large numbers and pervasiveness and
gualitative terminology of the like. And there's simply no
basis for that. If there was such a pattern, if there was
such a pervasive pattern, the NRC Staff would have said so,
but in contrast to that, the NRC Staff has said this is a
Category 1, excellent plant in plant operations. This is
one of the five best operated nuclear plants in the country.
It's simply inconceivable to me or to the company that such
a pervasive pattern could exist and the NR" Staff could find
that this is in fact one of the elite, one of the few
nuclear plants in the country vorthy of a commendation,

If a few isoclated events, personnel errors ==«
personnel errors occur everywhere. The plant is designed to
accommodate a certain amount of personnel errors. All of
the personnel errors at issue here have been determined to
be insignificant. They've been corrected, they are being
addressed, problematically and otherwise.

JUDGE BECHHOI 'ER: Again ==

MR. REPKA: .f I could just complete my thought

JUDGE BECHHOE! ER: Okay.

MR. REPKA: 1If four or five events could establish
hearing rights in this context for one of the few best
plants in the country, there would be hearing rights in

every single case of this type, and I think that's a result
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One, it's fundamentally outside the scope of the proceeding,
again, pecause there's no change here.

JUDGE BECHHOEFER: Well, the scope of the
proceeding is essentially going to be what we say it is,
because there isn't much precedent. There are some general
guidelines.

MR. REPKA: My opinion is that it should be
outside the scope of the procedure.

And number two is that even though you could
hypothetically say there is some number which it would arise
to a problem, we definitely have not reached that here in
light of the evidence that's been offered, in light of the
status of the plant, in light of all the other objective
indicia of performance that we've talked about this morning.
That's a basis ~- as a basic threshold argument on
adm.ssibility of contentions, it just simply has not come to
that point.

Now, 1'm not even willing to concede that there is
some number of personnel errors that would rise to the
admissibility of a contention, but I don't think we need to
reach that. We're just not even close to that in this
context, the context of this plant.

MS. ZAMEK: Can I make cne comment here? My
understanding is that the scope of this proceeding is to

find out whether Diablo Canyon Nuclear Power Plant can
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time this thing is in effect, the extension would be in
effect, you're going to be even shorter of good people than
you are now. Now, doesn't that seem to be exactly the kind
of contention, if it's at all supported =- 1 recognize that
they've only cited a newspaper article in effect. But
doesn't that seem to be exactly the kind of contention that
we should be considering because it says look, this is the
time period in which you are going to extend the license and
it's a time period in which you are going to get even
shorter of good people?

MR. REPKA: 1 agree at the threshold with the
concept that any contention clearly has to relate to the
time period in issue here. There has to be a nexus. And
this is the kind of concern that does have a nexus to the
time period,

But going beyond that, I would say first that
again this is an issue down the road that is really a. issue
for the NRC Staff to monitor compliance and to monitor
continued technical qualifications of the licensee during
the licensed period. That is the basic function of the
ingpection and enforcement program is once a license issues,
to make sure that the licensee continues to comply with its
obligations under the license.

So I'm saying, number one, that concern is really

a Staff concern to be monitored and, of course, the licensee
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And number two, it completely fails -~ even if you
aet beyond that, it completely fails for a lack of basis.
It's a speculative kind of argument. There's no ==~ nothing
asserted to the fact that if we did not have gualified
people, that we would continue to operate. The fact is, the
company recognizes it needs qualified people to -- qualified
and trained people to run a nuclear power plant, and that's
a truism, and there's no basis to believe we would act
othervise.

JUDGE SHON: Well, I think your first objection to
it, that is, the notion that in effect the staff is watching
and won't let anything happen could be used to vitiate
anything. 1 mean, even if they had come up with the fact
that the "statisfracistat" alwuys fails in 15 years, you'd
say, well, this staff is watching and it doesn't matter,
because even if it fails, we'll take care of it then, having
come in so early for your =-- with your application, you can
always say, "Oh, by that time we'll have taken care of it,"
couldn't you?

MR. REPKA: It doesn't matter when we came in,
because in either event, it's a matter for the Staff. 1It's
a post-licensing kind of issue. It's a post-licensing ==~
the initial license for this plant is the operating license,

and everything that transpires after that point is subject
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what you said for this kind of proceeding in the guestion =~

not whether they required it, but whether they would permit
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